. Earth Negatzatzons Bulletin

A Reporting Serwce for Envzronment and Development Negotiations
Online at http://www.iisd.ca/csd/csd17/

Vol. 5 No. 275

Published by the International Institute for Sustainable Development (IISD)

Friday, 8 May 2009

CSD 17 HIGHLIGHTS:
THURSDAY, 7 MAY 2009

On Thursday, CSD 17 delegates in Working Group 1
completed their first reading of text on rural development and
interlinkages and cross-cutting issues, including means of
implementation. They adjourned early to conduct regional and
interest group consultations prior to beginning negotiations on
Friday morning. Working Group 2 completed its first reading of
the Africa section and began negotiating the sections on land and
drought.

WORKING GROUP 1

RURAL DEVELOPMENT: The G-77/CHINA offered text,
including: development and integration into food markets of
small-holder family agriculture; ecosystem conservation through
community-based programmes; and empowerment and gender
equality in rural areas.

INTERLINKAGES, CROSS-CUTTING ISSUES,
INCLUDING MEANS OF IMPLEMENTATION:
SWITZERLAND proposed greater coherence between and
within international processes and institutions having an impact
on agriculture, food security and rural development. Ghana,
for the G-77/CHINA, stressed that sustainable development
should address the social dimension of globalization. JAPAN
highlighted the role of human security. The US offered text on
the promotion of education and extension related to agriculture.
The EU noted the role of education in changing consumer
behavior.

CANADA suggested using the term “marginalized” instead
of “vulnerable” when evoking certain groups. The US proposed
a new paragraph on promoting the role of local authorities
in creating vibrant markets for small farmers. The EU added
text on ensuring that biodiversity, water and forests provide
ecosystem services for achieving the MDGs, and on promoting
development or strengthening relevant mechanisms, and on
policy consideration of payments to farmers for such services.

The EU reworded language on sustainable consumption
and production patterns, highlighting them as an overarching
objective and essential requirement of sustainable development,
and adding reference to agricultural production and food
consumption. AUSTRALIA bracketed text on “developed
countries taking the lead” in promoting sustainable production
and consumption patterns, and the EU included mention of the
Marrakech 10-Year Framework of Programmes to accelerate the
shift to sustainable production and consumption, for deliberation
at CSD 18 and 19.

The G-77/CHINA proposed deleting “life cycle” approaches,
to which SWITZERLAND objected, and the EU included text on
reduction of losses of food in a life cycle perspective. The EU,
supported by the US, said climate change is not a cross-cutting
issue and proposed shifting most of the relevant provisions to
the thematic sections. SWITZERLAND offered text on strong
partnerships across sectors. The DEMOCRATIC REPUBLIC
OF CONGO highlighted the efforts of States who have ensured
the protection of their forest resources. MEXICO “wondered”
whether climate change is a cross-cutting issue and suggested
the implementation of adaptation strategies. JAPAN bracketed
“biochar” and proposed “reduced or no tillage and organic
matter application,” while the US proposed “further research
to evaluate” biochar’s potential. The G-77/CHINA and the EU
proposed text on the means of implementation. The US noted
that the discussion should stay in this section and lamented the
unbalanced focus on finance.

The US added “and effective use” to “enhancing availability”
of finance for sustainable development, and suggested replacing
the paragraph on increasing ODA with a reference to the
Monterrey Consensus and Doha Declaration recognizing
multiple sources of financing for development and the need for
national and international action. The EU proposed language on
the essential role of ODA as a complement to other sources.

The EU added “primarily at the national level” to the phrase
on creating an enabling environment. It also proposed new
wording on enhanced forms of debt restructuring mechanisms
based on existing frameworks and principles. JAPAN and
AUSTRALIA bracketed text on developing new and innovative
sources and methods of finance. NORWAY proposed a new
paragraph on establishing transparency in managing external and
national financial resources and curbing illegal flight of capital
and money laundering. The G-77/CHINA suggested adding
mention of “universal, rules-based, open, non-discriminatory and
equitable” in regard to the trading system. JAPAN and the EU
asked for deletion of the phrase on improved market access for
developing countries’ agricultural exports. CANADA replaced
elimination of trade distorting subsidies with “substantial
reduction of distorting domestic support.”

The US bracketed text on quotas and trade negotiations,
calling for greater focus on issues strictly relevant to sustainable
development. She noted that these issues are highly sensitive
and are being discussed in a different forum, and underscored
the importance of building capacity for part1c1patory land-use
planning. The EU offered text recognizing the importance of
bilateral trade and economic agreements as well as South-South

This issue of the Earth Negotiations Bulletin © <enb@iisd.org> is written and edited by Keith Ripley, Tanya Rosen, Andrey Vavilov, Ph.D., Lynn Wagner, Ph.D., and Kunbao
Xia. The Digital Editor is Leila Mead. The Editor is Pamela S. Chasek, Ph.D. <pam@iisd.org>. The Director of IISD Reporting Services is Langston James “Kimo” Goree VI
<kimo@iisd.org>. The Sustaining Donors of the Bulletin are the United Kingdom (through the Department for International Development — DFID), the Government of the United
States of America (through the Department of State Bureau of Oceans and International Environmental and Scientific Affairs), the Government of Canada (through CIDA), the
Danish Ministry of Foreign Affairs, the German Federal Ministry for Economic Cooperation and Development (BMZ), the German Federal Ministry for the Environment, Nature
Conservation and Nuclear Safety (BMU), the Netherlands Ministry of Foreign Affairs, the European Commission (DG-ENV), and the Italian Ministry for the Environment, Land
and Sea. General Support for the Bulletin during 2009 is provided by the Norwegian Ministry of Foreign Affairs, the Government of Australia, the Austrian Federal Ministry of
Agriculture, Forestry, Environment and Water Management, the Ministry of Environment of Sweden, the New Zealand Ministry of Foreign Affairs and Trade, SWAN International,
Swiss Federal Office for the Environment (FOEN), the Finnish Ministry for Foreign Affairs, the Japanese Ministry of Environment (through the Institute for Global Environmental
Strategies - IGES), the Japanese Ministry of Economy, Trade and Industry (through the Global Industrial and Social Progress Research Institute - GISPRI), the Government of’
Iceland, and the United Nations Environment Programme (UNEP). Funding for translation of the Bulletin into French has been provided by the International Organization of the
Francophonie (IOF). Funding for the translation of the Bulletin into Spanish has been provided by the Spanish Ministry of the Environment and Rural and Marine Affairs. The
opinions expressed in the Bulletin are those of the authors and do not necessarily reflect the views of IISD or other donors. Excerpts from the Bulletin may be used in non-commercial
publications with appropriate academic citation. For information on the Bulletin, including requests to provide reporting services, contact the Director of IISD Reporting Services at
<kimo@iisd.org>, +1-646-536-7556 or 300 East 56th St., 11A, New York, New York 10022, USA. The ENB team at CSD 17 can be contacted by e-mail at <lynn@jiisd.org>.




gy

| & =
T|Reporting
L|Services

Friday, 8 May 2009

Vol. 5 No. 275 Page 2

trade. MEXICO highlighted the effectiveness in the planning
and implementation of drought plans. CANADA stressed

the need for technologies to reach rural people, including
women, youth and children. The G-77/CHINA offered text

on the potential of global intellectual property rights for
development. On the issue of follow-up of CSD 17, LEBANON
proposed mechanisms with, inter alia, FAO, IFAD and WFP.
AUSTRALIA said a review process would be onerous and
resource-intensive.

After Working Group 1 completed its first reading of the
negotiating text in the afternoon, the G-77/CHINA requested
time for consultation before proceeding with the second reading.
Vice-Chair Mbuende announced that negotiations would begin
Friday morning, in the same sequence as the first reading.

WORKING GROUP 2

AFRICA: JAPAN suggested encouraging non-Paris Club
official bilateral creditors and private creditors to provide
comparable relief on Heavily Indebted Poor Countries (HIPC)
Initiative terms for eligible outstanding debt, and ensuring
the fulfillment of the G-8 Gleneagles commitment. The US
proposed reference to helping efforts to achieve MDGs and
eradicating poverty. The EU stressed ODA effectiveness in line
with Paris Declaration Principles.

The EU proposed the coherent implementation of the Rio
Conventions in Africa, and enhancing action on the provision
of new and additional financial resources as well as financial
and technical support as positive incentives to mitigation
strategies and adaptation action for developing countries.
Tanzania, for the G-77/CHINA, suggested text on: mobilizing
new financial resources including the UNFCCC Adaptation
Fund; technical skills for development; support for the African
Ministerial Conference on the Environment’s (AMCEN) climate
change program; and strengthening AMCEN and the African
Ministers’ Council on Water (AMCOW) as regional cooperation
mechanisms. He also warned that if other delegations proceed
with so many amendments, the G-77/CHINA would present new
“counterbalancing” text.

LAND: The text on balancing sustainability, rural
livelihoods, and food productivity in land policies and
management was approved with a G-77/CHINA reference
to social, economic and environmental aspects and the US
addition, at the suggestion of a major group, of a reference
urbanization. Text on strengthening capacities for implementing
an integrated land management approach was agreed after
the G-77/CHINA qualified “approach” with “sustainable”
and CANADA’s proposed reference to “local” capacities was
changed to the US-proposed reference to “subnational.”

The G-77/CHINA bracketed a US-proposed reference
to strengthening “networks” in addition to partnerships to
incorporate community goals. Delegates agreed that this
incorporation should include traditional knowledge. Delegates
agreed to AUSTRALIA’s proposal that incentives for SLM
should be “science-based, targeted” incentives. The G-77/CHINA
amended its proposal for accessibility to technology tools and
products to indicate it included tools “such as high resolution
satellite imagery,” but the EU and the US bracketed the text. The
G-77/CHINA withdrew its proposed text calling for improved
institutional and legal capacity of developing countries after
NORWAY suggested that it include capacity related to land
tenure and the US suggested that it refer to “all” countries.

The G-77/CHINA did not accept the EU and US amendment
specifying that the utilization of best available technologies be
“where appropriate, useful and cost effective,” so the paragraph
remains in brackets. Consensus was reached, with some

amendments, on paragraphs on establishing and strengthening
knowledge management networks and a database of land
experts, and on exchange and transfer of information on new
and improved technologies and best practices.

Delegates did not agree on texts related to: incentives to
reduce land degradation; and conserving and protecting land
soil resources. They agreed on texts on implementing policies
that address the direct and indirect drivers of land degradation,
and on developing capacities and applying new and existing
tools and technologies for monitoring soil quality and land
degradation.

The G-77/CHINA proposed new subparagraphs on promoting
integrated land management and promoting efficient water
management. Text was approved on: improving efficiency of
irrigation and rainfall harvesting after adding G-77/CHINA
amendments on water management practices and using
harvested rainwater to address water shortages; coastal erosion
and sea-level rise, with G-77/CHINA amendments on using
land use planning and climate change adaptation programmes
to address the threat and referencing low-lying coastal States
and areas; and information dissemination mechanisms regarding
land tenure, with a US amendment referencing collaborative
knowledge. The Chair’s text on saltwater intrusion was
approved.

The US agreed to drop its proposal specifying that ensuring
pastoralist grazing rights are protected would ensure mobility,
which is a prerequisite for viable nomadic and semi-nomadic
pastoralists’ livelihoods, but NORWAY requested that the
proposal be retained. The G-77/CHINA proposed replacing
text on land access to the poor with subparagraphs on national
efforts to: promote land access for the poor; and combat
speculative use of land and land resources and accumulation of
land. The G-77/CHINA introduced text on people living under
foreign occupation. The EU, US and SWITZERLAND said the
G-77/CHINA’s proposals on implementation should be moved
to the means of implementation section.

DROUGHT: Delegates deleted reference to drought
“prevention.” They differed over whether to reference:
integrated watershed, or water basin, and water resource
management (US); IWRM or integrated river basin management
(EU); or water resource management (G-77/CHINA). The
Chair’s text on proactive drought risk management approaches
was approved.

IN THE CORRIDORS

CSD participants commented on Thursday that negotiators
are using a large computer screen — the main drafting tool
for both Working Groups — to its full extent. Some observers
had the impression that the method of immediately inputing
amendments into the text might also be generating an urge by
some participants to fill the screen with the longest possible
phrases. Others, while agreeing that the process had the potential
to become unwieldy at points, said the procedure made it easier
for them to follow their counterparts’ proposals, with still others
commenting on the possibility to better engage delegates as they
both heard and saw the proposals. To some, computer drafting,
apart from its obvious advantages, clearly showed the inordinate
length of the updated draft (now running around 70 pages).

Apparently, delegates in Working Group 1 heeded the
warning issued by Chair Mbuende about an impending “Friday
midnight session”: on late Thursday afternoon they were seen
huddling in Conference Room 4, trying to decide on trade-offs
for the next day’s negotiating session. An old-time observer
noted that a compilation text might be useful at some point, as
the time for negotiations is quickly dissipating.




<<
  /ASCII85EncodePages false
  /AllowTransparency false
  /AutoPositionEPSFiles true
  /AutoRotatePages /None
  /Binding /Left
  /CalGrayProfile (Dot Gain 20%)
  /CalRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CalCMYKProfile (U.S. Web Coated \050SWOP\051 v2)
  /sRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CannotEmbedFontPolicy /Error
  /CompatibilityLevel 1.4
  /CompressObjects /Tags
  /CompressPages true
  /ConvertImagesToIndexed true
  /PassThroughJPEGImages true
  /CreateJobTicket false
  /DefaultRenderingIntent /Default
  /DetectBlends true
  /DetectCurves 0.0000
  /ColorConversionStrategy /CMYK
  /DoThumbnails false
  /EmbedAllFonts true
  /EmbedOpenType false
  /ParseICCProfilesInComments true
  /EmbedJobOptions true
  /DSCReportingLevel 0
  /EmitDSCWarnings false
  /EndPage -1
  /ImageMemory 1048576
  /LockDistillerParams false
  /MaxSubsetPct 100
  /Optimize true
  /OPM 1
  /ParseDSCComments true
  /ParseDSCCommentsForDocInfo true
  /PreserveCopyPage true
  /PreserveDICMYKValues true
  /PreserveEPSInfo true
  /PreserveFlatness true
  /PreserveHalftoneInfo false
  /PreserveOPIComments true
  /PreserveOverprintSettings true
  /StartPage 1
  /SubsetFonts true
  /TransferFunctionInfo /Apply
  /UCRandBGInfo /Preserve
  /UsePrologue false
  /ColorSettingsFile ()
  /AlwaysEmbed [ true
  ]
  /NeverEmbed [ true
  ]
  /AntiAliasColorImages false
  /CropColorImages true
  /ColorImageMinResolution 300
  /ColorImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleColorImages true
  /ColorImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /ColorImageResolution 300
  /ColorImageDepth -1
  /ColorImageMinDownsampleDepth 1
  /ColorImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeColorImages true
  /ColorImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterColorImages true
  /ColorImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /ColorACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /ColorImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasGrayImages false
  /CropGrayImages true
  /GrayImageMinResolution 300
  /GrayImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleGrayImages true
  /GrayImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /GrayImageResolution 300
  /GrayImageDepth -1
  /GrayImageMinDownsampleDepth 2
  /GrayImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeGrayImages true
  /GrayImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterGrayImages true
  /GrayImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /GrayACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /GrayImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasMonoImages false
  /CropMonoImages true
  /MonoImageMinResolution 1200
  /MonoImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleMonoImages true
  /MonoImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /MonoImageResolution 1200
  /MonoImageDepth -1
  /MonoImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeMonoImages true
  /MonoImageFilter /CCITTFaxEncode
  /MonoImageDict <<
    /K -1
  >>
  /AllowPSXObjects false
  /CheckCompliance [
    /None
  ]
  /PDFX1aCheck false
  /PDFX3Check false
  /PDFXCompliantPDFOnly false
  /PDFXNoTrimBoxError true
  /PDFXTrimBoxToMediaBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXSetBleedBoxToMediaBox true
  /PDFXBleedBoxToTrimBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXOutputIntentProfile ()
  /PDFXOutputConditionIdentifier ()
  /PDFXOutputCondition ()
  /PDFXRegistryName ()
  /PDFXTrapped /False

  /CreateJDFFile false
  /Description <<

    /BGR <>
    /CHS <FEFF4f7f75288fd94e9b8bbe5b9a521b5efa7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065876863900275284e8e9ad88d2891cf76845370524d53705237300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c676562535f00521b5efa768400200050004400460020658768633002>
    /CHT <FEFF4f7f752890194e9b8a2d7f6e5efa7acb7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065874ef69069752865bc9ad854c18cea76845370524d5370523786557406300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c4f86958b555f5df25efa7acb76840020005000440046002065874ef63002>
    /CZE <>
    /DAN <>
    /DEU <>
    /ESP <>
    /ETI <>
    /FRA <>
    /GRE <>

    /HRV (Za stvaranje Adobe PDF dokumenata najpogodnijih za visokokvalitetni ispis prije tiskanja koristite ove postavke.  Stvoreni PDF dokumenti mogu se otvoriti Acrobat i Adobe Reader 5.0 i kasnijim verzijama.)
    /HUN <>
    /ITA <>
    /JPN <FEFF9ad854c18cea306a30d730ea30d730ec30b951fa529b7528002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020658766f8306e4f5c6210306b4f7f75283057307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a30674f5c62103055308c305f0020005000440046002030d530a130a430eb306f3001004100630072006f0062006100740020304a30883073002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee5964d3067958b304f30533068304c3067304d307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a306b306f30d530a930f330c8306e57cb30818fbc307f304c5fc59808306730593002>
    /KOR <FEFFc7740020c124c815c7440020c0acc6a9d558c5ec0020ace0d488c9c80020c2dcd5d80020c778c1c4c5d00020ac00c7a50020c801d569d55c002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020bb38c11cb97c0020c791c131d569b2c8b2e4002e0020c774b807ac8c0020c791c131b41c00200050004400460020bb38c11cb2940020004100630072006f0062006100740020bc0f002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e00300020c774c0c1c5d0c11c0020c5f40020c2180020c788c2b5b2c8b2e4002e>
    /LTH <>
    /LVI <>
    /NLD (Gebruik deze instellingen om Adobe PDF-documenten te maken die zijn geoptimaliseerd voor prepress-afdrukken van hoge kwaliteit. De gemaakte PDF-documenten kunnen worden geopend met Acrobat en Adobe Reader 5.0 en hoger.)
    /NOR <>
    /POL <>
    /PTB <>
    /RUM <>
    /RUS <>
    /SKY <>
    /SLV <>
    /SUO <>
    /SVE <>
    /TUR <>
    /UKR <>
    /ENU (Use these settings to create Adobe PDF documents best suited for high-quality prepress printing.  Created PDF documents can be opened with Acrobat and Adobe Reader 5.0 and later.)
  >>
  /Namespace [
    (Adobe)
    (Common)
    (1.0)
  ]
  /OtherNamespaces [
    <<
      /AsReaderSpreads false
      /CropImagesToFrames true
      /ErrorControl /WarnAndContinue
      /FlattenerIgnoreSpreadOverrides false
      /IncludeGuidesGrids false
      /IncludeNonPrinting false
      /IncludeSlug false
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (InDesign)
        (4.0)
      ]
      /OmitPlacedBitmaps false
      /OmitPlacedEPS false
      /OmitPlacedPDF false
      /SimulateOverprint /Legacy
    >>
    <<
      /AddBleedMarks false
      /AddColorBars false
      /AddCropMarks false
      /AddPageInfo false
      /AddRegMarks false
      /ConvertColors /ConvertToCMYK
      /DestinationProfileName ()
      /DestinationProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /Downsample16BitImages true
      /FlattenerPreset <<
        /PresetSelector /MediumResolution
      >>
      /FormElements false
      /GenerateStructure false
      /IncludeBookmarks false
      /IncludeHyperlinks false
      /IncludeInteractive false
      /IncludeLayers false
      /IncludeProfiles false
      /MultimediaHandling /UseObjectSettings
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (CreativeSuite)
        (2.0)
      ]
      /PDFXOutputIntentProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /PreserveEditing true
      /UntaggedCMYKHandling /LeaveUntagged
      /UntaggedRGBHandling /UseDocumentProfile
      /UseDocumentBleed false
    >>
  ]
>> setdistillerparams
<<
  /HWResolution [2400 2400]
  /PageSize [612.000 792.000]
>> setpagedevice


